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These proceedi ngs concern proposals for assessnment of civi
penalties filed by the petitioner against the respondent pursuant
to section 110(a) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of
1977, 30 U.S.C. 0O 820(a), charging the respondent with twenty
(20) violation of certain mandatory safety and heal th standards
found in Parts 70, 75, and 77, Title 30, Code of Federa
Regul ati ons. The respondent filed tinmely contests and hearings
were held in Pikeville, Kentucky. The parties waived the filing
of posthearing briefs, but | have considered all of their ora
argunents made on the record during the hearings in ny
adj udi cati on of these matters.

Applicable Statutory and Regul atory Provisions

1. The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977; Pub. L
95-164, 30 U.S.C. O 801 et seq.



~10
2. Section 110(i) of the 1977 Act, 30 U.S. C. 0O 820(i).

3. Commission Rules, 29 C.F.R [0 2700.1 et seq.
| ssues

The issues presented in these proceedings are (1) whether
the cited conditions or practices constitute violations of the
cited mandatory safety and health standards; (2) whether severa
of the cited violations were significant and substantial (S&S);
(3) whether one section 104(d)(1) violation in Docket No. KENT
90-116, was unwarrantable; and (4) the appropriate civil penalty
assessnments to be made for the violations which have been
af firnmed.

Stipul ations
The parties stipulated to the following (Tr. 7-8):

1. The respondent does not dispute the fact of violations in
t hese proceedi ngs.

2. The history of prior violations is reflected in an MSHA
conmputer print-out (exhibit P-1).

3. The proposed civil penalty assessnents for all of the
violations are appropriate to the size of the m ning operations
conducted by the respondent.

Docket No. KENT 90-116

Thi s case concerns one section 104(d)(1) citation and four
section 104(a) citations issued by MSHA inspectors during the
course of their inspections, and they are as foll ows:

Section 104(d)(1) "S&S" Citation No. 3369907, October 4,
1989, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.316 (Exhibit P-2): "The air reaching the
face in the No. 2 left brk. where the 12 CM Joy conti nuous-ni ni ng
machi ne was being operated could not be measured with an approved
and cali brated anenoneter.”

MSHA | nspector Carlos Duff confirmed that he issued the
citation and he described the conditions he found which pronpted
himto do so. He stated that he detected | ess than 100 cubic feet
of air per minute in the cited area which had been driven to a
depth of 120 feet without establishing the required ventilation
of 6,000 cubic feet a minute as provided by the ventilation plan
(exhibit P-3).

M. Duff confirned that he detected no nethane in the area
but that the absence of ventilation resulted in "real dusty"
conditions which created visibility problens. He stated that the
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m ni ng machi ne, shuttle cars, and scoops were potential sources
of ignition and in the event of any nethane |iberation while coa
was being cut at the face there was a hazard of a fire or
explosion in the event the methane reached an expl osive | evel

M. Duff confirnmed that the cited condition was corrected
within 20 mnutes and that the violation was tinely abated.
Al though a ventilation curtain had been installed in the area,
and the respondent had a waiver allowing it to nmaintain the
curtain 20 feet fromthe face, no ventilation had been
established for the 120 feet area which had been driven.

M. Duff stated that the superintendent, or foreman, Danny
OGsborne, was a certified foreman and that he was required to
nonitor the ventilation on the section and check for nethane
every 20 mnutes. M. Duff stated further that given the fact the
entry had been driven for 120 feet, the |lack of ventilation was
not created during the shift and had to exist for at |east two
shifts and that M. Gsborne did not deny that he was aware of the
cited condition.

M. Duff confirmed that he did not check the m ni ng machi ne,
and he conceded that in the event the nmethane nonitor were
functioning properly and there were no permissibility violations,
the gravity would be less than he found (Tr. 9-26).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3158954, Decenber 18,
1989, 30 C.F.R [0 75.1103-4 (Exhibit P-4):

The automatic fire sensor and warni ng device system was
not properly installed on the No. 4 and 5 belt flight.
The fire sensor |ine ended approximately 120 feet outhy
the No. 5 tail roller. The fire sensors on the No. 4
and 5 belts were installed at or below the bottom belt.

MSHA | nspector Foster |. Justice confirmed that he issued
the citation and he described the cited conditions. He stated
that the fire sensor devices were in fact installed al ong nost of
the belt line but that they were hung froma wire rope and were
hangi ng bel ow the belt rather than at an el evati on above the
belt. He stated that the foreman, Gary Sunpter, advised hi mthat
the fire sensors throughout the mne were installed in a simlar
fashi on but that no one had previously cited the condition or
said anything about it. M. Justice confirmed that because of the
11 foot coal height in the mne, the respondent had a problem
installing the fire sensors at el evations above the belt because
of the roof and mning height conditions.

M. Justice stated that no sensors were installed for the
120 feet at the area outby the tail roller, but they probably
woul d have been when the belt was extended. He agreed that the



~12

m ni ng height and roof conditions did present an installation
probl em and he conceded that the condition was probably observed
and not cited during prior inspections. He confirned that the
condition was tinely abated and that the respondent repositioned
the sensors above the belt |ines.

M. Justice stated that since heat and snoke rises, the
| ocation of the sensors below the belt presented a hazard in that
there would be a delay in alerting the nminers on the section in
the event of a mine fire and they could have been "snoked out"
before the sensors detected any snoke. He confirmed that the belt
drive nmotors, stop-start boxes, and electrical wiring on the belt
line were potential sources of ignition. Any belt slippage or
stuck rollers could have resulted in a belt fire and the eight
m ners on the section would have been exposed to snoke inhal ation
and carbon nonoxi de. The belt was running coal at the tinme he
observed the conditions, and M. Sunpter acknow edged that he was
aware of the fact that the sensors were installed bel ow the
el evation of the belt (Tr. 28-42).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3158955, Decenber 19,
1989, 30 CF.R [ 70.501 (Exhibit P-6):

Based on the results of a supplenental noise survey
conducted by MSHA on 12/18/89, the noise standard has
been exceeded in the environnent of the roof dril
operator, occupation code 014 on the 001-0 MMJ. The
results obtained froma personal noise dosinmeter, Mrk
I, property No. 108221 showed a C/ T val ue of 169.5%

A hearing conservation plan as required by 30 CF.R O
70.510 shall be subnmitted to MSHA within 60 days from
the date of this citation.

I nspector Justice confirnmed that he issued the citation and
he expl ai ned that he conducted a noi se survey on the designated
roof drill operator occupation, used an approved dosi neter, and
found that the noise exposure exceeded the required level. He
stated that the respondent is required to nmonitor the noise
exposure fromthe equi pment to insure compliance.

M. Justice stated that he conducted five additional noise
surveys and found the noise exposure to be in conpliance in those
i nstances. He confirmed that one of the mi ner operators surveyed
was furnished with personal hearing protection with an EAR-pl ug
device, but that he did not determ ne whether the cited dril
operator had such a device. He conceded that any hearing damage
for excessive noise would occur over a protracted period of tinmne.
The violation was tinely abated after a subsequent test
determi ned no excessive noi se | evel exposure for the dril
oper at or
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and the respondent timely submitted a hearing conservation plan
(Tr. 42-51).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 2982728, January 17, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.216-3(a) (Exhibit P-7): "The slurry inmpoundment
has not been exam ned and the instrunentation nonitored by a
qualified person at intervals not exceedi ng seven days. The | ast
exami nation recorded in the book was dated 1-8-90. The | ast
pi ezonet er readi ngs recorded in the book were dated 12-22-89."

MSHA | nspector Robert H Bellany testified that he is a
m ni ng engi neer, has a degree in mning engineering fromthe
Uni versity of Kentucky, and that he is a specialist in dam
i mpoundnents which are created for disposal of mne refuse. He
confirmed that he issued the citation after determ ning that the
coal fines slurry dam i npoundnent constructed and nmi ntai ned by
the respondent was not being exanmi ned at |east every 7 days and
that the piezoneter instrument used to nonitor the water level in
t he i mpoundment was not being nmonitored and checked every 7 days
as required by the standard.

M. Bellamy confirmed that an inspection book was mai ntai ned
at the mine but that it did not reflect that the required
i nspections and nonitoring of the inmpoundment was bei ng conducted
and recorded. He stated that plant superintendent Janes Chitt
was one of the three individuals qualified to inspect and nonitor
the i mpoundnment and that M. Chitti advised himthat he was
"caught up in other work" or was "too busy" to performthese
t asks.

M. Bellamy stated that the purpose of the inspection and
nmonitoring of the inpoundnment is to detect any hazards which may
be devel opi ng and whet her or not the inpoundnent is being
properly constructed. He described the i npoundnent as a 130-foot
hi gh dam covering 900 acres and confirned that the respondent was
continuing to build it up by placing refuse materials on it and
that a bulldozer is at the site at all times for this purpose. He
confirmed that people were living below the [ocation of the
i mpoundnent, and that in the event of a failure of the
i mpoundnment, they would be at risk.

M. Bellany confirmed that at the tine of the inspection the
i mpoundnent was within the established safety factor, and that
the respondent had generally been in conpliance in the past with
the required inspections and nonitoring cycles (Tr. 52-68).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 2982729, January 17, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.216(d) (Exhibit P-8):

The mai ntenance of the slurry inpoundnent is not being
i mpl enented in accordance with the plan approved by the
district manager in that drainage fromthe right
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abut ment (1 ooki ng downstream) has been allowed to erode the
downst ream out sl ope of the enmbanknment. The erosion has
accunul ated at the toe, partially blocking the underdrain outlet.

I nspector Bellany confirned that he issued the citation
after observing that material at the toe of the inpoundnent
enbanknment had eroded and washed down the enbanknent bl ocking the
underdrain (Exhibit P-10, sketch of violative condition). The
purpose of the underdrain is to relieve any excess water
accurul ated under the embanknent, and as a result of the blockage
caused by the bl ocking of the underdrain, the water had
accunul ated and was seeping fromthe area above the drain. If the
bl ockage had continued, the water would not flow through the
underdrain and it will accumulate in and saturate the enbankment
and may eventually lead to a failure of the enbankment and the
dam M. Bellany confirmed that the inmpoundnent was not being
mai ntai ned in accordance with the approved plan (Exhibit P-9; Tr.
68-77).

Docket No. KENT 90-162

Thi s proceedi ng concerns five (5) section 104(a) citations
i ssued on Decenber 6, and 18, 1989, and they are as foll ows:

No. 3367667, 30 C.F.R O 77.216(d) (S&S) (Exhibit P-11).

The construction of the slurry inmpoundrment is not being
i mpl enmented in accordance with the plan approved by the
di strict manager in that the |andslide debris and | oose
soils are not being removed fromthe | eft abutnent
prior to the placenent of coarse refuse.

I nspector Bellany confirnmed that he issued the citation
after finding that the nmine refuse material deposited on the
i mpoundnent enbankment was bei ng deposited on top of other |oose
soils and debris which had slid down the enmbanknent during a
prior "landslide" in the area. The landslide materials were
unsui tabl e for conpaction and shoul d have been renoved fromthe
area before the refuse materials used to construct the
i mpoundnent were deposited. M. Bellany described the area as 150
by 50 feet, and he confirmed that 1 or 2 nonths prior to his
i nspection he had discussed the construction nmethods with M.
Chitti and informed himthat he could renove the | andslide
mat eri al s as the dam was bei ng constructed but that he could not
cover it with the refuse materials used to construct the dam

M. Bellany stated that sone of the | andslide material had
been cl eaned out prior to the day of his inspection, but that he
could not recall what M. Chitti may have said about the refuse
mat eri al s whi ch had been deposited over the | andslide area which
he observed. M. Bellany confirmed that the failure to renove
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the unstable |l andslide materials would cause seepage in that area
and would result in a "differential settlenment"” of the area and a
failure in that relatively small area. He did not believe that
any major failure of the inpoundnment woul d have occurred at the
time of the inspection but that a "worst case" scenario would be
a possible failure of the enmbanknment if the condition were not
corrected. He considered the cited area to be a "weak zone" in

t he dam enbanknent. He believed that construction work on the

i mpoundnent began approximately a year or so prior to the time of
his inspection. He did not know when the initial |andslide in
guestion occurred, but confirmed that he saw evi dence of the
slide when the dam was being constructed at an earlier time. M.
Bell amy did not believe that the landslide itself was a threat to
t he i npoundnent (Tr. 80-89).

No. 3367668, 30 C.F.R 0O 77.216(d) (Non S&S) (Exhibit P-12).

The mai ntenance of the slurry inpoundnent is not being
i mpl enmented in accordance with the plan approved by the
di strict manager in that refuse has been allowed to
bl ock the main underdrain outlet. The refuse prohibits
free flow fromthe underdrain.

The respondent withdrew its contest with respect to this
citation and agreed to pay the proposed civil penalty assessnment.
I nspector Bellany confirmed that the citation is distinguishable
fromthe prior inpoundnent citation which he issued (Exhibit
P-8), in that the water which was backed up in the bl ocked
underdrai n was seeping through the bl ocked drain and was not
backed up and seeping through the embanknent area above the
under dr ai n.

No. 3158951, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.1722(b) (S&S) (Exhibit P-13).
"The No. 4 conveyor head roller was not adequately guarded a
di stance to prevent a person fromreaching over the guard and
becom ng caught between the belt and conveyor head roller."

I nspector Justice confirmed that he issued the citation
after observing that the guard over the conveyor head roller was
insufficient to prevent someone fromreaching in and contacting
the pinch point. He stated that the head roller was partially
guarded with pieces of netal but that it did not conpletely cover
the pinch points. He believed that the cited condition was
obvi ous.

M. Justice stated that while miners are prohibited from
cl eani ng up, greasing, or perform ng other work around a noving
conveyor, it is comon know edge that they do. If there is any
sl i ppage of the conveyor belt roller, it is a commpn practice to
throw rock dust on the roller to dry it out and anyone doing this
woul d be exposed to a hazard of getting their armor had caught
in the unprotected pinch point. He was aware of an incident at
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anot her mine where a miner had his armtorn off when it was
caught in an unguarded head roller while he was throw ng rock
dust into it. He also believed that anyone cleaning up or
shoveling in the area could readily contact the pinch point if
they were to fall into it and contact the pinch point. If this
were to occur, a serious injury would result.

M. Justice had no know edge that the respondent required
anyone to rock dust the head roller, but it was his belief that
this is done anyway regardl ess of any instructions to the
contrary. The condition was abated at the tinme he next returned
to the mine to termnate the citation and the head roller was
protected with an adequate guard (Tr. 90-100).

No. 3158952, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.1722(b) (S&S) (Exhibit P-14).
"The No. 4 conveyor tail pulley was not adequately guarded to
prevent a person fromcomng in contact with the conveyor tai
pulley and belt. The tail roller was guarded with a piece of belt
across the back of the tail roller.”

I nspector Justice confirmed that he issued the citation
after observing that the conveyor tail pulley was not adequately
guarded to prevent a person from contacting the pinch point
between the pulley and the belt. He stated that the tail pulley
was guarded with a piece of belt material or a "flap" at the back
of the pulley but that it did not cover the ends or sides of the
pull ey at the pinch points. He did not believe that the belting
mat erial, which was not rigid and could easily be pushed aside,
constituted adequate guarding.

M. Justice confirmed that the hazards presented by the
i nadequate guard were the sane as those which were present with
respect to the previous citation which he issued for an
i nadequate guard on the conveyor head roller during the sane
i nspection (Exhibit P-13; Tr. 100-105).

No. 3158953, 30 C.F.R 0O 75.1715 (S&S) (Exhibit P-15). "The
check-in and check-out system was not established at this m ne
There was no positive identification of the persons underground
who portal at the 1-A portal."”

I nspector Justice confirnmed that he issued the citation
after determ ning that several mners who were working
underground were not identified or "tagged" on the check-in and
check-out board provided at the nmine. He explained that seven
m ners who were assigned to work at a new nmine area and who were
checked in at one area were in fact working at another area, and
t hat several mners working underground were not identified on
the board as bei ng underground.

M. Justice explained the required check-in and check- out
system and stated that the identification tag which a m ner
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carries on his belt nust conformto the one maintained on the
board. He was aware of a prior incident at another m ne where a
m ner who had worked a double shift had not checked in and was
unaccounted for after a rock fell on himand he could not mnove.
By the time rescuers reached him he had died after being
underground for 16 hours. M. Bellany stated that miners are
required to check in and out at the end of their shift in order
to account for everyone who may still be underground at the end
of their normal work shift (Tr. 105-114).

Docket No. KENT 90-163

This case concerns ten (10) section 104(a) citations, and
they are as foll ows:

Section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 9979793, Novenber 13,
1989, 30 C.F.R 0 70.207(a):

The mine operator did not take five (5) valid
respirabl e dust sanples fromthe designated occupation
036 on MMJ |.D. 003-0, for the binonthly period of
Sept enber - Oct ober as shown in the attached Advisory No.
010, dated November 7, 1989. Four (4) valid sanples
were received and credited to this binonthly sanpling
cycle. Managenment shall collect and submit five (5)
valid respirabl e dust sanples fromthe Designated
Cccupation 036 on MMJ |.D. 003-0. These sanpl es shal
be received by the Pittsburgh Respirabl e Dust
Processi ng Laboratory on or prior to the termi nation
due date listed on this citation

Section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 3364696, January 5,
1990, 30 CF.R 0O 77.1109(d), which states: "A fire extinguisher
was not provided for the nmain fan installation."”

The contestant withdrew its contests with respect to
Citation Nos. 9979793 and 3364696, and agreed to pay the proposed
civil penalty assessnents for these violations (Exhibits P-16 and
P-19).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364694, January 3, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 75.503: "The roof bolter being used on the 002-0
section was not being maintained in a pernissible condition. Wen
checked with an approved device, the control panel cover had an
opening in excess of .006 of an inch." (Exhibit P-17)

MSHA | nspector Lewis H Kl ayKo confirmed that he issued the
citation after conducting a permissibility inspection of the roof
bolter. He used a feeler gauge and found an opening in excess of
.006 of an inch in the bolter control panel cover. This was in
excess of the required perm ssible opening of .004 of an inch
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M. KlayKo confirmed that he detected no nethane in the cited
area. However, the roof bolter was in operation and the area was
dusty. Since there is always a chance of hitting a pocket of
met hane in a dusty environment, a spark or an arc through the
control panel cover opening could ignite the nmethane and the dust
could contribute to a nethane ignition. If this were to occur
the m ners working in the area would be exposed to | ost work days
and restricted duty injuries.

M. Kl ayKo stated that the respondent is required to conduct
weekly inspections of its electrical equipnent, including the
roof bolter. He believed that the cited condition should have
been detected during such an inspection or through the regular
mai nt enance of the equi pnent. He stated that foreman Ted McG nnis
i nformed himthat he was having problens on the section and that
he had a man off sick and was behind on his electrica
mai nt enance of the equipnent. M. Kl ayKo had no reason to dispute
this, and he indicated that the mai ntenance of the equi pnent was
"maybe not quite up to snuff."”

M. KlayKo confirmed that the condition was abated within 15
m nutes and that he had experienced no prior problems with the
respondent with respect to permissibility violations other than
the citations which he issued in this case. He also confirned
that the openings which he found in all of the cited equi pnent
probably resulted from sone mai ntenance work where the cover
panel s were not tightened sufficiently after they were renoved
and replaced (Tr. 120-125).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364695, January 3, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 75.503: "The Joy miner being used on the 002-0
section was not being maintained in a pernissible condition. Wen
checked with an approved device, the master control panel cover
had an opening in excess of .006 of an inch. (Exhibit P-18)."

I nspector KlayKo confirned that he issued the citation after
checki ng the Joy continuous-ni ning machi ne master control pane
with a feel er gauge and finding an opening in excess of .006 of
an inch, which was in excess of the required permssible opening.
The m ner was cutting coal at the face at the tinme of his
i nspection, and it was backed out so that he could check it.

M. KlayKo confirned that the hazards presented by the
violation were nore serious than those presented by the previous
citation concerning the non-perm ssible roof bolter because the
m ner was cutting coal at the face and that a sudden rel ease of
nmet hane could result in flame com ng out of the control pane
cover opening and causing an ignition which would endanger the
seven nmen wor ki ng the section



~19

M. KlayKo confirmed that he detected no nethane and had no
know edge of any prior nethane ignitions in the mne. He also
confirmed that the violation was abated in 15 m nutes and that
M. MG nnis' explanation for the existence of the condition was
the sane as the one for the cited roof bolter (Tr. 125-129).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364697, January 5, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.1605(a), which states as follows: "The Caterpillar
dozer S/ N 92Vv12890, had broken wi ndows in both doors of the cab."
(Exhi bit P-20).

I nspector KlayKo confirned that he issued the citation after
finding cracks in the wi ndows of both doors of the cited
bul | dozer whi ch was pushing coal on a surface storage pile. He
stated that the dozer operator was not wearing any eye protection
and he believed that a sliver of glass could have flaked off the
cracked gl ass because of the vibration of the dozer while it was
operating and found its way to the eyes of the operator injuring
him He believed that any sliver or flake of glass could have
fallen on the gl oves of the operator and that he could have
i nadvertently rubbed it in his eyes.

M. KlayKo believed that the condition existed for "a few
days" and that the foreman or the equi pnent operator shoul d have
observed the condition and taken corrective action. He stated
that foreman Chitti offered no explanation for the condition, and
M. Kl ayKo indicated that the surface areas, including the
equi pnent, was required to be preshifted. He also confirmed that
the wi ndshield was in good condition, and that the cracked door
wi ndows were safety glass. The violation was tinely abated and
the respondent replaced the cracked wi ndows (Tr. 129-135).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364698, January 5, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.1605(b): "The International end | oader Mdel H- 90,
used to spread sludge on the haul road was not equi pped with
adequate park brake. It would not hold when set." (Exhibit P-21).

I nspector KlayKo confirmed that he issued the citation after
i nspecting the cited end | oader and finding that the parking
brake woul d not hold when it was engaged and tested on a 5 to 7
degree grade. The | oader was | oading slag, or |linmestone rock and
gravel, on trucks which were spreading it on a haul age road and
the | oader was al so used to spread sone of this material. M.
Kl ayKo stated that the foot brakes were in good condition, and
that the front bucket is often lowered to the ground to serve as
an additional braking device.

M. Kl ayKo stated that the haul road was approxi mately 50
feet wide, and while there were other steeper grades along the
road, the end | oader would not be operated in those areas. He
bel i eved that the inadequate parking brake presented a hazard in
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the event the operator decided to stop the | oader with the engine
runni ng and got out to clear some debris fromthe roadway. |If
this occurred, the | oader would roll back and possibly strike
some of the trucks or the drivers who were out of their trucks
whi | e working on the roadway.

M. KlayKo stated that the equi pnment operator is required to
check the brakes before operating the | oader and to report any
i nadequate brake condition to his foreman. He confirmed that the
operator of the |oader infornmed him (Kl ayKo) that the parking
brake was not working. M. Kl ayKo also confirmed that the
equi pnment operator is required to make a mai ntenance report but
that he did not check any such reports.

M. KlayKo stated that a possibility of an accident existed,
and he confirmed that a | oader operator would not nornmally park
the machine on a grade. He also indicated that the parking brake
may have mal functioned during the course of the working shift
(Tr. 135-146).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364699, January 5, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.400(c), states as follows: "The guards on the
refuse conveyor belt drive had been renoved and not repl aced.”
(Exhibit P-22).

I nspector KlayKo confirned that he issued the citation after
finding that the guards on the refuse conveyor belt drive had
been renoved and not replaced. He observed the guards about 3
feet fromthe belt which was running, but he saw no one working
in the area. He stated that he had wal ked by the belt a day or
two earlier and the guards were renoved, but since the belt was
not running at that time he assuned that it was down for
mai nt enance and did not issue a citation

M. Kl ayKo conceded that subsection (d) of section 77.400,
was nore appropriate than subsection (c), and w thout objection,
the petitioner was allowed to anend its pleadings to conformto
its evidence and to reflect a citation of subsection (d) rather
than (c).

M. Kl ayKo stated that foreman Chitti informed himthat a
roll er had probably been changed out and that soneone had
negl ected to replace the guards. M. Kl ayKo believed that the
belt shoul d have been preshifted, and he believed that anyone
cl eaning or greasing the belt while it was running could contact
t he unguarded pinch points and suffer serious injuries. The
guards were reinstalled the sane day, and M. Kl ayKo term nated
the citation when he next returned to the mne on January 8, 1990
(Tr. 146-153).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3364700, January 8, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 75.503: "The Joy m ner being used on the 001-0



~21

section was not nmmintained in a pernissible condition. Wen
checked with an approved device, the trailing cable junction box
cover had an opening in excess of .008 of an inch." (Exhibit
P-23).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3515144, January 9, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 75.503: "The roof bolter being used in the 001-0
section was not being naintained in a permissible condition. Wen
checked with an approved device, the cover for the lights
junction box had an opening in excess of .009 of an inch."
(Exhi bit P-24).

I nspector KlayKo confirmed that he issued the permssibility
vi ol ations after checking the m ner machi ne and roof bolter with
a feeler gauge and finding openings in the mner trailing cable
junction box and the roof bolter lights junction box greater than
perm ssi bl e. The roof bolter opening was the |argest that he has
ever found. He confirmed that the hazards presented by the
violations were the same as the previous permssibility
vi ol ati ons which he issued, and that the miner and bolter were
both operating i mediately prior to his inspecting them

M. KlayKo stated that foreman McG nnis "felt bad" about the
viol ations and corrected themimmediately within 15 m nutes. M.
Kl ayKo confirnmed that his inspection was his first inspection
visit at the m ne and he was not aware of any prior conpliance
problems at the mine (Tr. 153-158).

Section 104(a) "S&S" Citation No. 3515145, January 9, 1990,
30 CF.R 0O 77.205(e), states as follows: "The steps to the parts
trailer on the surface area of the 001-0 section was not provided
with handrails." (Exhibit P-25).

I nspector KlayKo confirnmed that he issued the citation after
he observed that the steps at the parts trailer were not provided
with hand rails. He stated that there were four steps |eading up
to the trailer interior. He believed that the steps were
substantially constructed wooden steps approxi mately 40 inches
wi de and 10 i nches deep. The highest step leading into the
trailer was approxi mately 48 inches above ground | evel

M. Kl ayKo believed that the |lack of hand rails presented a
slip and fall hazard. Mners who would visit the trailer to
obtain parts could possibly slip on the stairs during the w nter
season if they were frozen. The ground conditions near the steps
were wet and nuddy and the freezing and thaw ng of the ground
woul d contribute to the slipping conditions since the materials
woul d be deposited on the steps. In the event someone slipped on
the steps they would have nothing to hold onto to break their
fall. If they were to slip off the stairs they could suffer a
possi bl e broken | eg, back, or shoul der
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M. KlayKo stated that foreman McG nnis advised himthat the ack
of handrails was an oversight and that he would install them
mredi ately. The condition was corrected and handrails were
nstalled on both sides of the stairway (Tr. 158-166).

Fi ndi ngs and Concl usi ons
Fact of Violations

As previously noted, the respondent has stipulated that al
of the conditions and practices cited by the inspectors in these
proceedi ngs constitute violations of the cited mandatory safety
or health standards, and it has withdrawn its contests with
respect to three of the violations (Citation Nos. 3367668,
9979793, and 3364696). Further, the respondent has presented no
testinmony or evidence to rebut the credible testinony of the
i nspectors in support of the violations which they issued in the
course of their inspections. Under the circunstances, | concl ude
and find that the petitioner has established all of the contested
vi ol ati ons by a preponderance of the credible and probative
evi dence presented in these proceedings, and all of the
vi ol ati ons ARE AFFI RVED

Significant and Substantial Violations

A "significant and substantial" violation is described in
section 104(d)(1) of the Mne Act as a violation "of such nature
as could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a coal or other mine safety or health hazard." 30
C.F.R 0O814(d)(1). Aviolation is properly designated

significant and substantial "if, based upon the particular facts
surroundi ng the violation there exists a reasonable |ikelihood
that the hazard contributed to will result in an injury or

illness of a reasonably serious nature." Cenment Division
Nat i onal Gypsum Co., 3 FMSHRC 822, 825 (April 1981).

In Mathies Coal Co., 6 FMSHRC 1, 3-4 (January 1984), the
Commi ssion explained its interpretation of the term "significant
and substantial™ as follows:

In order to establish that a violation of a mandatory
safety standard is significant and substantial under
Nati onal Gypsum the Secretary of Labor nmust prove: (1)
the underlying violation of a mandatory safety
standard; (2) a discrete safety hazard--that is, a
measure of danger to safety-contributed to by the
violation; (3) a reasonable likelihood that the hazard
contributed to will result in an injury; and (4) a
reasonabl e likelihood that the injury in question wll
be of a reasonably serious nature.
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In United States Steel M ning Conmpany, Inc., 7 FMSHRC 1125, 1129,
(August 1985), the Conmi ssion stated further as foll ows:

We have explained further that the third el enent of the
Mat hies forrmula "requires that the Secretary establish
a reasonabl e |ikelihood that the hazard contributed to
will result in an event in which there is an injury."
US. Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August
1984). We have enphasi zed that, in accordance with the
| anguage of section 104(d)(1), it is the contribution
of a violation to the cause and effect of a hazard that
nmust be significant and substantial. U S. Steel M ning
Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1866, 1868 (August 1984); U.S.
Steel M ning Conpany, Inc., 6 FMSHRC 1573, 1574-75
(July 1984).

In United States Steel M ning Conmpany, Inc., 7 FMSHRC 327
(March 1985), the Commi ssion reaffirnmed its previous holding in
U S Steel Mning Co., 6 FMSHRC 1834, 1836 (August 1984) that it
is the contribution of a violation to the cause and effect of a
hazard that nmust be significant and substantial, and that a
determ nation of the significant and substantial nature of a
vi ol ation nust be made in the context of continued normal m ning
operations, including the question of whether if |eft
uncorrected, the cited condition would reasonably likely result
in an accident or injury.

The respondent presented no testinony or evidence to rebut
the testimony and evi dence adduced by the petitioner in support
of the significant and substantial (S&S) findings made by the
i nspectors. Under the circunmstances, and on the basis of the
credi bl e and probative testinony presented by the inspectors,
conclude and find that with the exception of Citation No. 3364697
(broken door wi ndows on a bulldozer), and Citation No. 3364698
(i nadequat e parking brake on an end | oader), (Docket No. KENT
90-163), all of the S&S findings made by the inspectors with
respect to the remnining contested citations and order are
supportabl e, and these findi ngs ARE AFFI RVED

Wth regard to Citation Nos. 3364697 and 3364698, the
respondent's representative argued that the cited conditions did
not present any hazards or a reasonable |ikelihood of an injury.
The sane argunment was nade with respect to Citation No. 351545
(lack of hand-rails on parts trailer steps) (Docket No. KENT
90-163) .

Wth regard to Citation No. 3364697, concerning the "broken"
wi ndows in both doors of the cited bull dozer operator's cab, |
take note of the fact that the inspector testified that the
wi ndows were "cracked" and he was concerned that a sliver of
gl ass could have flaked off the glass and found its way to the
eyes of the operator. He also believed that a flake or sliver of
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gl ass could have fallen on the gloves of the operator and he
could have inadvertently rubbed the glass in his eyes with his
gl oves.

The inspector confirnmed that the bull dozer w ndshield, which
is directly in front of the bull dozer operator, was in good
condition, and that the cracked door w ndows were constructed of
safety glass. Under these circunmstances, and in the absence of
any evidence as to the proxinmty of the doors to the operator's
face while seated in his normal position at the controls of the
machine, | find it highly unlikely that a sliver of glass from
t he cracked safety glass doors would contact the operator's eyes.
I conclude and find that the inspector's belief that an injury
was reasonably likely is unsupported specul ation, and his S&S
finding is vacated. The citation is nodified to reflect a non-S&S
vi ol ati on.

Wth regard to Citation No. 3364698, concerning the cited
end | oader with an inadequate parking brake, the inspector
confirmed that the service or foot brakes which are normally
applied to stop the machine while it is working were in good
condi tion.

The inspector confirmed that the | oader woul d not be
operated in roadway areas steeper than the 5 to 7 degree grade
where the parking brake was tested. He believed that there was a
possibility of an accident in the event the | oader operator
decided to stop the |oader with the engine running and left his
machi ne to clear some debris fromthe roadway. However, the
i nspector confirmed that the | oader bucket is often [owered to
the ground to serve as an additional braking device, and he
conceded that a | oader operator would not normally park the
machi ne on a grade.

The inspector confirmed that the | oader operator inforned
hi mthat the parking brake was not working. However, the
i nspector apparently did not question the operator about his
specul ative conclusion that the operator would | eave his machine
with the engine running on a grade to clear debris fromthe
roadway. In the absence of any evidence that this was in fact the
case, | cannot conclude that the inspector's speculation
concerning the possibility of an accident supports his S&S
finding. Accordingly, his finding in this regard is vacated, and
the citation is nodified to reflect a non-S&S violation

Wth regard to Citation No. 3515145, concerning the |ack of
protective handrails on the parts trailer steps, | conclude and
find that the credible and unrebutted testinony of the inspector
supports his S&S finding, and it is affirned.
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Unwarrant abl e Failure Viol ation

In Docket No. KENT 90-116, Citation No. 3369907, issued on
Oct ober 4, 1989, and citing a violation of the ventilation
requi renments of mandatory safety standard section 75.316, was
i ssued as a section 104(d)(1) unwarrantable failure citation

The governing definition of unwarrantable failure was
expl ai ned in Zeigler Coal Conpany, 7 |BMA 280 (1977), decided
under the 1969 Act, and it held in pertinent part as follows at
295-96:

In Iight of the foregoing, we hold that an inspector
should find that a violation of any mandatory standard
was caused by an unwarrantable failure to conmply with
such standard if he determ nes that the operator
i nvol ved has failed to abate the conditions or
practices constituting such violation, conditions or
practices the operator knew or should have known
exi sted or which it failed to abate because of a |ack
of due diligence, or because of indifference or |ack of
reasonabl e care

In several recent decisions concerning the interpretation
and application of the term"unwarrantable failure," the
Commi ssion further refined and explained this term and concl uded
that it neans "aggravated conduct, constituting nore than
ordi nary negligence, by a nmine operator in relation to a
violation of the Act." Energy M ning Corporation, 9 FMSHRC 1997
(Decenber 1987); Youghi ogheny & Ohi o Coal Conpany, 9 FMSHRC 2007
(Decenber 1987); Secretary of Labor v. Rushton M ning Conpany, 10
FMSHRC 249 (March 1988). Referring to its prior holding in the
Emery M ning case, the Comm ssion stated as follows in
Youghi ogheny & Chio, at 9 FMSHRC 2010:

W stated that whereas negligence is conduct that is
"inadvertent," "thoughtless" or "inattentive,"
unwar r ant abl e conduct is conduct that is described as
"not justifiable" or "inexcusable."” Only by construing
unwarrantable failure by a mne operator as aggravated
conduct constituting nore that ordi nary negligence, do
unwarrant abl e failure sanctions assune their intended
distinct place in the Act's enforcenment schene.

In Enery M ning, the Conm ssion explained the neaning of the
phrase "unwarrantable failure" as follows at 9 FMSHRC 2001

We first deternine the ordinary meani ng of the phrase
"unwarrantable failure.”™ "Unwarrantable" is defined as
"not justifiable"” or "inexcusable." "Failure" is
defined as "negl ect of an assigned, expected, or
appropriate action." Webster's Third New
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International Dictionary (Unabridged) 2514, 814 (1971)
("Webster's"). Conparatively, negligence is the failure to use
such care as a reasonably prudent and careful person would use
and is characterized by "inadvertence," "thoughtl essness," and
"inattention." Black's Law Dictionary 930-31 (5th ed. 1979).
Conduct that is not justifiable and i nexcusable is the result of
nore than i nadvertence, thoughtl essness, or inattention. * * *

The inspector's credible testinmny, which is not rebutted by
the respondent, supports his conclusion that there was little or
no ventilation in the cited area which had been driven for 120
feet. G ven the distance driven, with no ventilation, the
i nspector’'s conclusion that the condition existed for at |east
two shifts, is supportable. The respondent did not dispute the
i nspector's testinony that the certified foreman present in the
area was required to nonitor the ventilation and did not deny
that he was aware of the cited condition, and indeed admitted it
(Tr. 17). Although the inspector confirmed that he detected no
nmet hane present, he nonethel ess found that the absence of
ventilation resulted in "real dusty" conditions and that the
m ni ng machi ne, shuttle cars, and scoops operating on the section
constituted potential ignition sources which presented a fire or
expl osi on hazard in the event of any methane liberation while
coal was being cut.

The respondent presented no evidence or testinony to rebut
the inspector's findings that a significant and substantia
violation existed, nor did it present any reasonabl e expl anation
for the absence of ventilation in the cited area. In addition to
the inspector's testinmony that the section foreman, who was with
hi m during his inspection, admtted that he was aware of the | ack
of ventilation, the inspector testified that the condition could
not have been created on the on-going shift, and that the | ack of
ventilation existed for at |east two, and possibly three prior
shifts (Tr. 23). He also confirmed that in order to abate the
condition and establish the required amount of ventilation
pursuant to the ventilation plan, three breaks had to be cut
t hrough and this work was done the next day (Tr. 24-25). Under
all of these circumstances, | conclude and find that the
i nspector’'s credible testinmony supports a finding of aggravated
conduct and his unwarrantable failure finding and citation IS
AFF| RVED.

Si ze of Business and Effect of Civil Penalty Assessnents on the
Respondent's Ability to Continue in Business

The parties agreed that the respondent enpl oys approximtely
100 miners, and that its annual production for 1989 was
approximately two-mllion tons of coal. The annual production for
the No. 1 Mne was one-mllion tons. The respondent's
representative confirned that the respondent operates eight mnes
and that the
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No. 1 Mne consists of an underground mining operation, a surface
pl ant, and an inpoundnment. The respondent stipul ated that paynent
of the proposed civil penalty assessnents in all of these
proceedings will not adversely affect its ability to continue in
busi ness.

In view of the foregoing | conclude and find that the
respondent is a large mne operator and that the paynent of the
civil penalty assessnents that | have nmade for the violations
whi ch have been affirnmed will not adversely affect its ability to
continue in business.

Hi story of Prior Violations

The MSHA conputer print-out listing the respondent's
conpliance record for the period Cctober 4, 1987, through Cctober
3, 1989, reflects that the respondent paid civil penalty
assessnments in the amount of $18,742, for 160 violations, 44 of
whi ch were "single penalty” non-S&S violations. Wth the
exception of one section 104(d)(1) order, one conbined section
104(a) citation and 107(a) i mm nent danger order, and five
conbi ned section 104(a) citations and section 104(b) orders, al
of the remaining violations were issued as section 104(a) S&S
citations.

Wth regard to Docket No. KENT 90-116, | take note of the
fact that the conputer print-out reflects one prior violation of
30 CF.R 0O 75.316, issued on March 22, 1988, as a "single
penalty" citation for which the respondent paid a civil penalty
assessment of $20. No prior violations of sections 75.1103-4,
70.501, 77.216-3(a), or 77.216(d) are noted.

In Docket No. KENT 90-162, the conputer print-out reflects
no prior citations for violations of sections 77.216(d) and
75.1722(b). Six prior violations of the check-in and check- out
requi renents of section 75.1715, were issued on April 6, 1988, as
"single penalty" citations which were assessed and paid at $20
each. | assunme that the nultiple citations were issued for
failure to provide proper identification for six individua
mners. In the instant proceeding, the inspector issued a single
violation for failure to provide proper identification for seven
m ners wor ki ng under gr ound.

In Docket No. KENT 90-163, the print-out reflects no prior
vi ol ati ons of sections 70.207(a), 77.1605(a), and 77.400(c).
Three prior violations of section 77.1605(b) are noted, and they
were all issued on April 4, 1988.

Al t hough | cannot conclude that the respondent's history of
prior violations is particularly good, for an operation of its
size where the No. 1 Mne had an annual production of one mllion
tons, | cannot conclude that it warrants any increases in the
civil penalty assessnents which | have made for the violations
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whi ch have been affirnmed. In this regard, | have considered the
fact that the respondent's history contains only a few repetitive
vi ol ati ons, none of which | consider particularly egregious, and
this is reflected in nmy civil penalty assessnents.

Good Faith Conpliance

The record in these proceedi ngs establishes that the
respondent tinely corrected and abated all of the violations in
good faith. In Docket No. KENT 90-163, the four pernmissibility
violations were all abated within 15 minutes, and the handrails
were installed in the parts trailer stairway i mediately and
prior to the time fixed by the inspector.

In Docket No. KENT 90-116, the ventilation violation was
abated and the ventilation was restored within 30 m nutes of the
i ssuance of the violation. One of the slurry inpoundnment
vi ol ations (2982728), was abated within 2 hours, and 1-day
earlier than the time fixed by the inspector

In Docket No. KENT 90-162, the check-in and check-out
vi ol ati on was abated within 3 hours, 2-hours earlier than the
time fixed by the inspector.

I have taken the respondent's good faith and rapid abat enent
actions into consideration in the civil penalty assessnments which
I have made for the violations in these proceedings.

Negl i gence

Except for Citation Nos. 3369907 and 3364696, the inspectors
found that all of the remaining violations resulted froma
noder at e degree of negligence. The inspector who issued Citation
No. 3369907 concluded that it resulted froma high degree of
negl i gence, and the inspector who issued Citation No. 3364696
concluded that it resulted froma | ow degree of negligence.

The respondent presents no testinony or evidence to rebut
the findings of the inspectors. Based on these findings, which
conclude and find are supported by the evidence adduced in these
proceedi ngs, | further conclude and find that all of the
violations were the result of the failure by the respondent to
exerci se reasonabl e care to prevent the cited conditions or
practices which it knew or should have known existed. Under the
ci rcunst ances, the negligence findings mude by the inspectors are
all affirmed.

In Docket No. KENT 90-163, with respect to the violation for
the broken wi ndows on the cited bull dozer, and the inadequate
parki ng brake on the cited end | oader, | have considered the fact
that the equi pnent operators apparently failed to adequately
i nspect the equi pnent and did not report the violative conditions
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to their respective foremen. The inspector testified that the end
| oader operator acknow edged that the parking brake was

i nadequate, and the broken glass on the bulldozer should have
been readily obvious to the operator. Although the negligence of
t he equi pnment operators does not absolve the respondent of any
liability for the violations, | have considered this in
mtigation of the civil penalty assessnents nmade for these

vi ol ati ons.

Gravity

Wth the exception of the three citations which were issued
as "single penalty" non-S&S citations (3367668, 9979793, and
3364696), | conclude and find that on the basis of the credible
testi mony presented by the inspectors, all of the remaining
citations affirmed as significant and substantial (S&S)

vi ol ati ons, were serious.

Wth regard to Citation Nos. 3364697 and 3364698, | concl ude
and find that the cracked safety glass wi ndows in the doors of
the cited bulldozer and the inadequate end | oader parking brake
wer e nonserious conditions.

Civil Penalty Assessnents

Al t hough the respondent presented no testinobny or evidence
with respect to the fact of each violation, its representative
confirmed that the respondent contested the violations because it
bel i eved that the inspectors were issuing all citations at the
m ne as significant and substantial (S&S) violations, and that
this has resulted in civil penalty assessments which the
respondent believes are "high" for the conditions cited.

The respondent al so took the position that the "high"
penalty assessnents resulted from MSHA' s i nappropriate
consideration of its history of prior violations. |In support of
this assertion, the respondent believes that any prior violations
i ssued on any of the nmine working sections should be considered
and limted only to those nmine sections rather than the entire
m ne. The respondent further believes that it is unfair to
conbine all of the prior violations and consider them as part of
the conpliance record for the entire mne, rather than the
separate mne sections, and that by considering themin totality,
rather than separately, "doubl e assessnents" have resulted.

It is clear that | am not bound by MSHA's civil penalty
assessment procedures found in Part 100, Title 30, Code of
Federal Regul ations. Nor am | bound by MSHA's proposed civi
penal ty assessments. All civil penalty cases contested by a mne
operator before the Conm ssion, an agency which is not part of
the U S. Departnent of Labor, are considered de novo by the
presiding judge, and any civil penalty assessments are nade in
accordance with the criteria found in section 110(i) of the Act.
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In the instant proceedings, ny findings and conclusions with
regard to the violations are based on the preponderance of the
credi bl e and probative evidence adduced on the record in the
course of the hearings. The civil penalty assessnents which |
have made for the violations which have been affirmed are

i kewi se based on the evidentiary record and the criteria found
in section 110(i) of the Act.

The respondent's assertion that its history of prior

vi ol ati on shoul d be considered separately for each mne section
I find no support for

rather than the entire nine
the respondent's concl usi on that
prior history of violations resulted in any "doubl e"
civil penalty assessnents.

is rejected.
MSHA' s consi derati on of

viol ations for the purposes of any civi

reflected in the conputer

in this case. |

penalties for the violations in question

that the respondent

unfairly.

On the basis of the foregoing findings and concl usi ons,
taking into account the civi

penal ty assessment

pr oposed
The respondent's history of prior

penalty assessnments is

1 Mne, and

as noted
in assessing the
concl ude

print-out which is a part of the record
have considered this conpliance record as the

overall conpliance record for the No.
violations noted in the print-out as the tota
m ne, regardl ess of the particular
viol ative conditions may have occurred. Further
earlier, | have taken this history into account
and | cannot
has been unreasonably penalized or treated

t he

history for the
m ne sections where the

and

requi rements of

section 110(i) of the Act, | conclude and find that the follow ng
civil penalty assessnents are reasonable and appropriate for the

vi ol ati ons whi ch have been affirnmed in these proceedi ngs:

Docket No. KENT 90-116

Citation No. Dat e 30 C.F.R Section Assessnent
3369907 10/ 04/ 89 75. 316 $950
3158954 12/ 18/ 89 75.1103-4 $165
3158955 12/ 19/ 89 70. 501 $100
2982728 01/ 17/ 90 77.216-3(a) $170
2982829 01/17/90 77.216(d) $150

Docket No. KENT 90-162
Citation No. Dat e 30 C.F.R Section Assessment
3367667 12/ 06/ 89 77.216(d) $100
3367668 12/ 06/ 89 77.216(d) $ 20
3158951 12/ 18/ 89 75.1722(b) $175
3158952 12/ 18/ 89 75.1722(hb) $175
3158953 12/ 18/ 89 75.1715 $250
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Docket No. KENT 90-163

Citation No. Dat e 30 CF.R Section Assessnent
9979793 11/ 13/ 89 70. 207(a) $ 20
3364694 01/ 03/ 90 75. 503 $160
3364695 01/ 03/ 90 75. 503 $160
3364696 01/ 05/ 90 77.1109(d) $ 20
3364697 01/ 05/ 90 77.1605(a) $ 20
3364698 01/ 05/ 90 77.1605(hb) $ 20
3364699 01/ 05/ 90 77.400(d) $125
3364700 01/ 08/ 90 75. 503 $160
3515144 01/ 09/ 90 75. 503 $160
3515145 01/ 09/ 90 77.205(e) $170

ORDER

The respondent |'S ORDERED to pay the civil penalty
assessnments shown above within thirty (30) days of the date of
t hese decisions and order. Paynment is to be made to MSHA, and
upon recei pt of paynment, these proceedi ngs are dism ssed.

CGeorge A. Koutras
Adm ni strative Law Judge



